
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FRIDAY 27 NOVEMBER 2020 at 6pm. 

 
 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO REMOTE MEETINGS 
 

During the Covid 19 pandemic virtual meetings are taking place. 
 
PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen to proceedings at 
this virtual meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the Council website at 
least 24hrs before the meeting. 
 
To view live paste this link into your browser: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTnwgp0Ku8iFLQ 
 
 
Members of the press and public may tweet, blog etc. during the live broadcast, as 
they would be able to during a regular Committee meeting in the Council Offices. 
It is important, however, that Councillors can discuss and take decisions without 
disruption, so the only participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors 
concerned and the officers advising the Committee. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE  
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTnwgp0Ku8iFLQ


Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: 
Councillors J Butler (Chairman), 
P Hogarth MBE (Vice-Chairman), 
K Allsopp, C Buxton-Sait, T Dicicco, 
R Grinsell, B Groom, J Hamilton, F Nash, 
K Thomas and P Thomas 
 

 
NICK PAGE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121-704 6000  
 
David Acton 
Tel: 0121 704-6156 
Email: dacton@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date 20 November 2020 
 

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
FRIDAY 27 NOVEMBER 2020 

 
AGENDA 

 
Mayor/Chairman of the meeting to announce: 
 
‘May I remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live via the 

internet.’ 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
To receive declarations of interest from Members. 
 

3.  QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
To answer any questions, if any, asked by any resident of the Borough pursuant 
to Standing Orders. 
 

4.  STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (Pages 5 - 10) 
To note the comments received in response to the consultation relating to the 
statutory review of the Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 
2003. 
 

5.  PAVEMENT LICENCES (Pages 11 - 14) 
To update Licensing Committee on the impact to date of a temporary Pavement 
Licensing regime under the Business & Planning Act 2020. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Meeting date: Friday 27 November 2020 

 

Report to: Licensing Committee 

Subject/report 
title: 

Statutory Revision of Statement of Licensing Policy under Licensing 
Act 2003 – approval of document for publication 

Report from: Director for Economy & Infrastructure 

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer: 

Anne Bettison 

abettison@solihull.gov.uk 

 

 
Wards affected:  

☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

Public/private 
report: 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph: 

Select an Exemption paragraph from the Quick Parts drop-down list 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To note the comments received in response to the consultation relating to the 
statutory review of the Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. 

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 To approve the updated document and recommend its ratification and adoption by Full 
Council on 8 December. 

3. Matters for Consideration 

3.1 The Council is required to review and publish a Statement of Licensing Policy every 5 
years (or earlier if deemed necessary).  The last revision was published in January 
2016, so the next one needs to be published by January 2021. 

3.2 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and the impact it has had on licensing authorities 
and the hospitality industry, consultation was undertaken on the basis that the current 
policy should be rolled forward in its existing form, although any representations 
received should be taken in to account and incorporated in to the policy statement as 
appropriate.   

3.3 At the time of writing this report (20 November), one representation has been 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 
 

received, from the Local Safeguarding Children’s Partnership.  This is attached at 
Appendix A.  

3.4 As the consultation does not close until Wednesday 25 November, any further 
comments or representations received will be forwarded to members of the 
Committee accordingly. The revised draft Statement of Licensing Policy document will 
also be forwarded for consideration after this date so that all comments can be 
incorporated into one draft version. 

4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

4.1 There are no alternative options as this is a statutory requirement.  

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

5.1 The Licensing Act 2003 requires Licensing Authorities to publish their Statement of 
Licensing Policy on or before 7 January in each five year period.  

6. Implications and Considerations 

6.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

Economy: 

1. Revitalising our towns and local 
centres. 

2. UK Central (UKC) and maximising the 
opportunities of HS2. 

3. Increase the supply of housing, 
especially affordable and social 
housing. 

The Statement of Policy outlines the 
general approach the authority will take in 
making decisions about licensing 
applications.  This includes a generally 
permissive regime (provided the licensing 
objectives are promoted satisfactorily), 
which helps to build a thriving local 
economy. 

Environment: 

4. Enhance Solihull’s natural environment. 
5. Improve Solihull’s air quality. 
6. Reduce Solihull’s net carbon emissions. 

One of the four licensing objectives is the 
Prevention of Public Nuisance, which is 
generally defined as noise, litter and 
noxious smells.  The Statement of Policy 
illustrates how the licensing authority and 
applicants/licence holders can help to 
promote this objective and therefore 
minimise the impact on the local 
environment. 

People and Communities: 

7. Take action to improve life chances in 
our most disadvantaged communities. 

8. Enable communities to thrive. 

The Statement of Policy helps to outline the 
balance between the needs and rights of 
local residents and the ability of licence 
holders to operate a responsibly managed 
thriving business.  The licensing objective 
‘Protection of Children from Harm’ ensures 

Page 6

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Ourvisionandpriorities/Council_plan.pdf


 

 
 

9. Sustainable, quality, affordable 
provision for adults & children with 
complex needs. 

that children are not exposed to licensable 
activities that may endanger them.  It is a 
requirement of the Licensing Authority and 
applicants/licence holders to ensure the 
objectives are upheld.  .       

6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

6.2.1 A 20-day consultation took place between 6-25 November.  All responsible authorities 
and a number of trade/residents representatives were contacted by email and the 
consultation was advertised publicly on the Council website and through social media 
channels as appropriate. 

6.3 Financial implications: 

6.3.1 None 

6.4 Legal implications: 

6.4.1 It is a statutory requirement to review, consult on and publish a Statement of Licensing 
Policy at least once every 5 years.   

6.5 Risk implications: 

6.5.1 Although no changes to the existing policy were proposed, the short length of the 
consultation period may be challenged.  However due to the Council meeting 
schedule and the need to publish the Statement of Policy by 7 January 2021, it was 
felt that this risk is low. 

6.6 Equality implications: 

6.6.1 None identified 

7. List of appendices referred to 

7.1 Appendix A – Representation from the Local Safeguarding Children’s Partnership. 

8. Background papers used to compile this report 

8.1 None 

9. List of other relevant documents 

9.1 Licensing Act 2003 

9.2 Home Office Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (dated 
April 2018) 

 

 

Page 7



 

 
 

APPENDIX A 

Hi  

Please find below my suggested amendments for the statement of licencing policy for 
consideration: 
 
Page 4 heading for section 15.8  is Child Sexual Exploitation; this should be Child 
Exploitation  
Page 6 section 2.3 makes reference to Local Safeguarding Children Board(LSCB); this 
should be Local Safeguarding Children Partnership(LSCP).  
Page 10 section 6.3 makes reference to Child Sexual Exploitation – this should be Child 
Exploitation 
Page 16 section 15.4 addition in italics recommended: Where a large number of children are 
likely to be present on any licensed premises, for example, a children's show or pantomime, 
then conditions may be imposed requiring the presence of an appropriate number of adult 
staff (ratio may be specified) to ensure safety and protection from harm. Staff required to 
work with unaccompanied children will be recruited following safer recruitment policies that 
will include the requirement for enhanced DBS checks. Any allegations made about harm to 
children will be reported to the Local Authority  Designated Officer (LADO)  
Page 16 section 15.5  3rd point states  the requirement to be accompanied by an adult; this should be the 
requirement to be accompanied by an appropriate adult 
Page 16 section 15.6 addition in italics recommended:  The Licensing Authority will not normally impose any 
condition that specifically requires access for children to be provided at any premises. Where no restriction or 
limitation is imposed, the issue of access will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licensee or 
club who should always remember that it is everyone’s duty to safeguard and promote the wellbeing of 
Children.  

Page 16 section 15.7 addition in italics recommended: The applicant may wish to consider 
displaying prominent signage informing customers that it is an offence to sell or allow the 
sale of alcohol to children, to purchase alcohol on behalf of a child, or for a child to buy or 
attempt to buy alcohol for themselves. In addition, those supervising children may be refused 
the sale of alcohol to prevent the neglectful care of children from parents or carers if they are 
irresponsibly under the influence of alcohol.  
Page 16 section 15.7 currently states: “The Licensing Authority encourages applicants and licence holders to 
demonstrate how the risks of child sexual exploitation will be minimised and managed, e.g. through the 
implementation of a child protection policy. Applicants and licence holders should be fully aware of the signs 
of child sexual exploitation and to understand that the sexual exploitation of a child is sexual abuse and a 
crime. This information should be cascaded appropriately to staff through training. Appropriate conditions 
may be attached to protect children from moral, psychological or physical harm.” Recommended change: “The 
Licensing Authority encourages applicants and licence holders to demonstrate how the risks of child sexual 
exploitation will be minimised and managed, e.g. through the implementation of a child protection policy. This 
should reflect that Solihull recognises that exploitation is deliberate maltreatment and manipulation 
irrespective of their age, gender, ethnicity, background or ability and sexuality and comes in many forms 
including: Modern Slavery, Human Trafficking, Sexual Exploitation- which is a form of sexual abuse – and 
Criminal Exploitation. Applicants and licence holders should be fully aware of the signs of child exploitation and 
radicalisation and understand that these are both abuse and a crime. This information should be cascaded 
appropriately to staff through training. Appropriate conditions may be attached to protect children from 
moral, psychological or physical harm.” 
 
I also think the statement is lacking something about Modern Slavery being included in the scope of the 
document; given the requirement under Section 54 (Transparency in Supply Chains) of the Modern Slavery Act 
2015 that certain commercial organisations must publish an annual statement setting out the steps they take 

Page 8



 

 
 

to prevent modern slavery in their business and their supply chains (certain organisations being: A commercial 
organisation is required to publish an annual statement if all the criteria below apply: it is a ‘body corporate’ 
or a partnership, wherever incorporated or formed; it carries on a business, or part of a business, in the UK; it 
supplies goods or services; it has an annual turnover of £36 million or more) within the body of the statement 
there should be the requirement for responsible recruitment and treatment of staff. Should there be a 
statement of how the Local Authorities Licensing links to the Gang Masters Licensing Act (2004)? 
 
Regards 

 
Denise Lewis 

 

LSCP Training Officer 
Phone- 0121 788 4464 
Mobile- 07818898074 
Email- dlewis@solihull.gov.uk 
Address- The Blue Bell Centre  
West Mall 
Chelmsley Wood  
Solihull 
B37 5TN 
Website- www.solihulllscp.co.uk   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
   
 

 

Page 9

mailto:dlewis@solihull.gov.uk
http://www.solihulllscp.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Meeting date: 27 November 2020 

 

Report to: Licensing Committee  

Subject/report 
title: 

Update on Pavement Licensing – Business & Planning Act 2020 

Report from: Assistant Director Communities & Partnerships 

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer: 

Anne Bettison – Licensing Team Leader 

 

 

 
Wards affected:  

☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

Public/private 
report: 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph: 

N/A 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To update the Licensing Committee on the impact to date of a temporary Pavement 
Licensing regime under the Business & Planning Act 2020.  

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 None – this is for information only.  

3. Matters for Consideration 

3.1 The Business & Planning Act came into effect on 22 July 2020 and has introduced a 
temporary pavement licensing regime, designed to support businesses to operate 
safely while social distancing measures remain in place as they start to reopen following 
the COVID-19 pandemic. A Pavement Licence is granted by the Licensing Authority 
and allows the licence-holder to place removable furniture over the public highway 
adjacent to the premises in relation to which the application was made, for certain 
purposes. Any licence granted also benefits from deemed planning permission and, if 
the premises is licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 for on-sales of alcohol, it also 
benefits from deemed off-sales under the same terms conferred by the premises 
licence. 

3.2 This streamlined process was intended to be cheaper, quicker and less onerous than 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 

the existing Pavement café licensing scheme under Part 7A of the Highways Act 1980 
and allows businesses to secure a licence up to 30 September 2021, when they will 
expire along with the emergency provisions under the Act. 

3.3 A policy was developed and approved following the introduction of the legislation, 
available here: https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Business/Licences/Pavement-licence 

3.4 The fee for an application was set at £100, which is the maximum that can be levied 
under this regime. 

3.5 A total of seven applications have been received.  Of these, five licences have been 
granted and two were not pursued (and are non-refundable).  The standard local and 
national conditions have been attached to the granted licences. 

3.6 If social distancing restrictions are still in place next year it is anticipated that more 
applications will be received to enable businesses to utilise outside areas during the 
warmer months. 

4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

4.1 No options needed – the Licensing Committee is asked to note the update. 

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

5.1 It was agreed following the introduction of the regime that the Licensing Committee 
would be updated on progress after the first few months. 

6. Implications and Considerations 

6.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

Economy: 

1. Revitalising our towns and local 
centres. 

2. UK Central (UKC) and maximising the 
opportunities of HS2. 

3. Increase the supply of housing, 
especially affordable and social 
housing. 

The temporary regime was intended to help 
businesses to operate safely and provide 
much needed income over the summer 
months and protect as many hospitality jobs 
as possible during the current challenging 
economic period. The new legislation helps 
enable local eligible businesses to increase 
capacity by utilising additional space.  The 
application is simple, expedient and value 
for money, and is intended to remove short-
term obstacles during the current 
challenging times.      

Environment: 

4. Enhance Solihull’s natural environment. 
5. Improve Solihull’s air quality. 

Greater consideration will be given to 
furniture that is in keeping with the local 
environment. 

Page 12

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Business/Licences/Pavement-licence
https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Ourvisionandpriorities/Council_plan.pdf


 

 
 

6. Reduce Solihull’s net carbon emissions. 

People and Communities: 

7. Take action to improve life chances in 
our most disadvantaged communities. 

8. Enable communities to thrive. 
9. Sustainable, quality, affordable 

provision for adults & children with 
complex needs. 

By working collaboratively with partners, 
residents and local businesses, the 
Licensing Authority can support the 
hospitality industry by permitting businesses 
to trade safely while at the same time taking 
into account the needs of local residents, 
neighbouring businesses and the local 
environment. 

 

6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

6.2.1 Officers from the Highways Authority, Planning, Economic Development and 
Environmental Health, as well as West Midlands Police and West Midlands Fire Service, 
are consulted on each application.  Ward Members and Parish or Town Councils are 
also consulted on applications in their respective areas.  It is also the responsibility of 
the applicant to display a notice advertising the application for the duration of the public 
consultation period (7 days), to afford local residents and businesses in the area the 
opportunity to comment.  The Licensing Authority must take views received during the 
consultation period into account when determining the application and, as a result of 
these comments, may feel it appropriate and proportionate to attach additional 
conditions to mitigate any concerns. 

6.2.2 To date, no comments or representations have been received about any of the 
applications processed. 

6.3  Financial implications: 

6.3.1 The Act stipulates that an application must be sent to the Licensing Authority using 
electronic communications in such a manner as the authority may specify, and be 
accompanied by such fee not exceeding £100 as the authority may require.   An 
online portal has been developed for this purpose, to enable applicants to complete all 
of the application questions, upload the relevant documents and make payment in a 
streamlined manner.  This will ensure that staff are managing applications in the most 
efficient way without the need for constant follow-up queries.  ICT services have 
advised that to set up a new fund code to enable payments to be made, there may be 
an additional cost of up to £2000.  Although this is not chargeable until the threshold 
has been met, if enough applications are not received, this may need funding from the 
central ICT budget.  

 
6.3.2 It should be noted and endorsed that full cost-recovery for this regime may not be 

possible due to the maximum fee chargeable for applications. 
 
6.4 Legal Implications: 

6.4.1.  As covered in the Act and summarised in the accompanying guidance. 

Page 13



 

 
 

6.5 Risk Implications: 

6.5.1  As stated above at 6.3.2., there are risks full cost-recovery is not achievable and the 
regime may need to be subsidised from elsewhere.  

6.3 Equality implications: 

6.3.1 The Licensing Authority treat all applications received openly, fairly and consistently in 
line with the approved policy and in consideration of its Equality duties. 

7. List of appendices referred to 

7.1 None 

8. Background papers used to compile this report 

8.1 The Business & Planning Act 2020 and Explanatory Notes 

8.2 Guidance: Pavement Licences (outdoor seating proposal) 

8.3 LGA brief guidance note: Licensing of outdoor drinking and dining 

9. List of other relevant documents 

9.1 None 

Page 14


	Agenda
	4 Statement of Licensing Policy
	5 Pavement Licences

